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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To
The Members of Sanvo Resorts Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Flnancial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying the Financlal Statements of Sanvo Resorts Private Limited
(“the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2022, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial Statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as *
Financlal Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements glve the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")
In the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31%t March, 2022, and its
profits including Other Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of financlal statement in accordance with the Standards on Audlting specified
under section 143(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements sectlon of our report. We are
independent of the Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code
of Ethics. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtalned Is sufficlent and appropriate to
provide a basls for our opinion on financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of other
Information. The other information includes the information in Annual Report, but does not Include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our oplnion on the financial statements does not cover the other infarmation and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financlal statements,
our responsibllity Is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information Is materially inconslstent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audlt or otherwise appears to be materlally misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there Is a materlal misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report In this regard.

Responsibllities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated In section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
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financlal position, financial performance including Other Comprahensive Income, changes In equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting princlples generally accepted In
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards speclified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, Implementation and
maintenance of adequate Internal financlal controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s abllity to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financlal Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Stardards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered materlal
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
declslons of users taken on the basis of these Financlal Statements.

As part of an audlt in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that Is sufficient and approprate to provide a basls for our opinion, The risk of not
detecting a materlal misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audlt
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Companles
Act, 2013 as amended, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financlal controls system In place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materfal uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s abllity to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are Inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audlt evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. .
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¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves falr presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencles In
internal control that we Identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), Issued by the
Central Government of India In terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequlred by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtalned all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are In agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinlon, the aforesaid Financlal Statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2015, as amended.

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2022 ‘taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31st March, 2022 from belng appolnted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal finandial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in "Annexure B”,

(9)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on financial position in
its Financlal Statements as referred to In note no 37.

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts. ( is it applicable?)

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Educatlon and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv.  (a) The Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
bellef, as disclosed In the notes to the financial statements no funds (which are
‘material either indlvidually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
Invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entltles, including forelgn
entities ("Intermedlaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or
otherwlse, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the llke on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlarles;

(b) The Management has represented to us that, to the best of Its knowledge and
bellef, as disclosed In the notes to the financlal statements, no funds (which are
materlal either individually or in the aggregate) have been recelved by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or Indirectly, lend or invest In other persons or entitles identifled in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate In the drcumstances, nothing has come to our notice that cause us to
belleve that the representation given by the Management under paragraph (3) (g)
(iv) (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the current period.

3. During the year no dlrector remuneration Is paid or provided by the Company and hence
reporting as required under Section 197(16) of the Act is not made.

For Rajendra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FIrm's Registration No. 126305W

WCM

A. R. Shah

Partner

Membership No. 047166
UDIN: 22047166AISTMY5344
Place: Mumbai

Date; 27th May, 2022




RAJENDRA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
1311 Dalamal Tower 211 Nariman Point Mumbai 400021 Tel : 2285 5770 Fax : 2283 4243 E-muil : contact@rajendraco.com

"ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

f) (@) (A) The Company has maintalned proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
detalls and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have Intangible assets and hence reporting under clause (i) (a) of
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b) Asexplalned to us, these Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management in a phased periodical manner, which In our opinion Is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No materlal discrepancles were noticed
on such physical verification.

() The company does not own any immovable property. Accordingly, the provislon of clause (c)
of Para 3 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable and hence not
commented upon.

(d) According to the Information and explanation glven to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and
Equipment (including Right of Use assets) and hence reporting under clause (i) (d) of
paragraph 3 of the Order Is not applicable.

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no proceedings initiated
or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibitlon) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder and hence
reporting under clause (I) (e) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

() (@) Inventories comprise of car parking units, unsold Inventory, expenditure Incurred on
acquisition of land and tenancy rights, development rights, and other expenditure on
construction and development of the project of the company. As explained to us, physical
verification of the Inventories have been conducted at reasonable Intervals by the
management, which in our opinlon Is reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company
and nature of Its Inventorles. No materlal discrepancles were noticed on such physical
verification.

(b) During the year, the Company has obtained working capital limits in excess of rupees five
crores, in aggregate, from banks or flnanclal Institutions (“lenders”) on the basls of security of
current assets, but as represented to us that no returns or stock statements are required to
be filed by the Company with the lenders and hence reporting under clause (il) (b) of
paragraph 3 of the Order Is not applicable.

(iii) (@) During the year the Company has granted loans as follows: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Loans

Aggregate amount granted/provided during the vear 7,716.36
- Subsidiarles ]
- Others (Related Parties) 7,716.36
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect
of above cases 43,437.47
- Subsldiaries -

- Others (Related Parties) ) 43,437.47
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(i) () During the year, Company has made the investments and also granted loans to companies.
The terms and conditions of the sald loans are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

(iit) (c), (d) and (&)

The unsecured loans granted to entities and interest thereon are repayable on demand and
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of Interest in respect of such loans has not
been stipulated and hence, we are unable to comment whether the repayments or receipts
are regular, report on amounts overdue for more than ninety days, If any and whether any
loans which has fallen due during the year has been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the overdues as required under clause (ili) (c) (d) and (e) of Paragraph 3 of
the Order.

(iiy () The Company has granted loans without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars Related Parties
Aggregate amount of loans as at 31% March 2022
- Repayable on demand - (A) 42,257.1
- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of repayment - (B) )
Total (A+B) 42,257.1
Percentage of loans/advances in nature of loans to the total
loans 97.30%

(iv)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not directly or
indirectly advanced any loan to the person or given guarantees or securities In connection
with the loan taken by persons covered under Section 185 of the Act and hence clause (Iv) of
paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable to the Company. Further, the provisions of sec
186 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as it is engaged in the business of Real
Estate and construction.

V) According to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted
any deposits within the meaning of provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Therefore, the clause (v) of
paragraph 3 of the Order Is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by Central Government for maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
Companles Act 2013, related to construction activity, and are of opinion that prima facle, the
specified accounts and records have been made and malntained. We have not, however,
made a detailed examination of the same,

(vil)  In respect of Statutory dues:

a. According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues Including Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Service
Tax, Duty of Custom, Duty of Exclse, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues
have been generally regularly deposited with appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
the aforesaid dues, were outstanding as at 31st March,2022 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, the disputed dues on account
of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess that have not been deposited before appropriate authorities are as under:




RAJENDRA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
1311 Dalamal Tower 211 Nariman Point Mumbal 400021 Tel : 2285 5770 Fax : 2283 4243 E-mail : contact@rajendraco.com

Name of The Nature of Period to which Amount Forum Where
Statute Dues the amount (Rsin Dispute is
relates (F.Y.) lakhs) pending
Maharashtra Real Interest Upto FY 2021-22 272.00 Maharashtra RERA
Estate Regulatory Appeliate Tribunal

Authorlty, 2016

Cenvat Credit Rule, Inadmissible | 3uly 2012- March
2004 credit 2014

Customs Exclse and
83.76 Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

(vili) According to Information and explanations glven to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there were no transaction relating to
previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as income In the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 during the year.

(ix) a  The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and other borrowings and
Interest due thereon.

b. In our opinion, to the best of our knowledge and according to the Information and
explanations given to us, the company Is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financlal institution or other lender.

¢. In our opinion, to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and
explanations glven to us, the company has not availed any term loan and hence
reporting under clause (ix) (c) is not applicable.

d. On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

e. The Company does not have any subsidiarles, joint ventures or assoclate companies
hence question of taking any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidlarles, associates or jolnt ventures during the year does not
arise and hence clause (ix) (e) of paragraph 3 the order is not applicable to the
Company.

f. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies
hence the question of ralsing loans during the year on the pledge of securities held In Its
subsidiaries, jolnt ventures or associate companies does not arise and hence clause (ix)
(f) of paragraph 3 the order Is not applicable to the Company.

(x) a. According to the Information and explanations provided to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, the Company has not raised money by way of Initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year under
review and hence, reporting requirements under clause (x) (a) of paragraph 3 of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and, not commented upon,

b. According to the Information and explanations provided to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or Convertlble debentures (fully, partially or optionally
convertible) during the year under review and hence, reporting requirements under
cdlause (x) (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(x) a  Based upon the audlt procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
falr view of the Financlal Statements and according to the information and explanations
provided by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.
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b. In our opl'nlon, to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and
explanations glven to us, no report has been filed under sub -section (12) of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 by the audltors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the
year.

¢. In our opinion, to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not received any whistle blower complaints
during the year.

(xil) In our opinlon the Company Is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under, the
provisions of clause (a), (b) and (c) (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(xiii} According to the information and explanations provided by the management,

transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Act where applicable and the detalls have been disclosed in the financial statements, as
required by the applicable_accounting standards.

(xiv) a.  According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of Its
business.

b. We have considered reports of Internal auditor for period under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, durlng the
year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transaction with the directors or
persons connected with him and covered under section 192 of the Act and hence
reporting under clause (xv) of the paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi) a. In our opinion, to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and
explanatlons glven to us, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

b. In our opinion, to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company has not conducted any Non -Banking Financial or
Housing Finance activities during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause (b) (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

¢ In our opinion, to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the company is not a Core Investment Company CIC) as
defined in the regulations made by Reserve Bank of India and hence, reporting
requirements under clause (c) (xvi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

d. As represented by the management, the Group has no Core Investment Company (CIC)
as part of the Group as per the definition of Group contalned in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016.

(xvii) According to the Information and explanations provided to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, the Company has not incurred cash losses In financial
year and in the immediately preceding financial year,

(xvill) The statutory auditors of the Company have not resigned during the year and hence,
reporting requlrements under clause (xviil) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the Information and explanations provided to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet and on the basis of the financlal ratios, ageing and
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expected dates of realisation of financlal assets and payment of financial llabllities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans, in our opinion no material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report that company Is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a perlod of one year from the
balance sheet date;

() a. In respect of other than on-golng projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act), In compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the
Act. This matter has been disclosed In note 39 to the financial statements.

b.  There are no unspent amounts in respect of on-going projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of sectlon
135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.

(od) According to the Information and explanations provided to us, provisions of the act
regarding preparation of consolidated financial statement is not applicable to the
company as there is no investment in the subsidiary, assoclate company and joint
venture company and hence, reporting requirements under clause (xxi) of paragraph 3
of the Order are not applicable to the Company

For Rajendra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No,

(VA

A. R, Shah
Partner
Membership No. 047166

UDIN: 22047166AISTMY5344

Place: Mumbal
Date: 27" May, 2022.




RAJENDRA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
1311 Dalamal Tower 211 Nariman Polnt Mumbai 400021 Tel : 2285 5770 Fax : 2283 4243 E-mail : contact@rajendraco.com

ANNEXURE “"B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to In paragraph 2 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financlal Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (1) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companles Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the Internal Financial Control over financial reporting of SANVO RESORTS
PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31% March, 2022 In conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year then ended.

Management Responsibility for the Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintalning internal financal
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criterla established by the Company
considering the essential components of Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficlent conduct of its business, Including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility Is to express an oplnlon on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance with the Guidance
Note Issued by ICAI and the Standards on auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financlal controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtaln
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financlal controls over finandal reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively In all material respects.

Our audit Involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financlal reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of
internal financial controls over financlal reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financlal reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectlveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, Including the assessment
of the risks of materlal misstatement of the Financlal Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtalned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal flnancial controls system over financlal reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financlal Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financlal reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policles and procedures
that (1) pertaln to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and falrly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Finandlal Statements in accordance
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with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
belng made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
Financlal Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financlal Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, Including the
possibllity of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all materlal respects, an adequate internal financlal controls system over finandal
reporting and such Internal financial controls over financlal reporting were operating effectively as
at 31st March, 2022, based on the Internal control over financlal reporting criteria established by
the Company consldering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Rajendra & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No 108355W

ot

A. R. Shah

Partner

Membership No. 047166
UDIN: 22047166AISTMY5344
Place: Mumbal

Date; 27th May, 2022.
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. ﬂ} SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
P BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

ASSETS
1.Non Current Assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 715.16 623.91
(b) Right to use assets s .
(c) Financlal assets
(1) Investments 3 618.83 .
(it) Loans 4 19,552.72 20,616.62
(i) Other financlal assets S 671.04 469.97
(d) Income tax assets (net) 6 321,53 27151
(e) Other Non-current assets 7 327.21 20.30
Total Non-Current Assets (1) 22,206.49 22,002.31
2, Current assets
(a) Inventorles 8 14,575.12 13,713.74
(b) Financlal assets
(1) Cash and cash equivalents 9 626.85 4,12544
(11) Bank balances other than (1) above 10 4,489.73 4,044.96
(:1f) Trade recefvables 11 2,970.29 4,355.26
(iv) Loans 12 23,881.38 19,408.30
(v) Other financlal assets 13 17.15 13.18
(c) Other current assets 14 2,815.33 1,11511
Total Current Assets (2) 49,375.85 46,775.99
Total Assets (1+2) 71,582.34 68,778.30
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(@) Share capital 15 1.00 1.00
(b) Other equity 16 6,009.00 5,598.36
Total Equity (1) 6,010.00 5,599.36
Liabilitles
2. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financlal liabilitles
- Borrowings 17 18,227.84 24,654.87
(b) Provistons 18 2,665.90 2,814.94
(c) Deferred tax liabillty (net) 19 12.80 20.77
Total Non-Current Liabllitles (2) 20,906.54 27,490.58
3. Current Liabllities
(a) Financlal liabilitles
(1) Borrowlngs 20 17,454.04 9,243.22
(if) Trade payables 21
Due to micro and small enterprises 862.14 319.61
Other than micro and small enterprises 1,505.97 2,538.49
(i) Other financial labilities 22 808.41 253.68
(b) Provistons 23 313.48 225.80
(c) Current tax labilitles (net) 24 - 189.02
(d) Other current liabllitles 25 23,721.76 22,918.54
Total Current Liabilities (3) 44,665.80 35,688.36
Total Equity and Llabilities (1+2+3) 71,582.34 68,778.30
Significant Accounting Policies 1 B
The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financlal 2t043
statements
As per our Report of even date
For Rajendra & Co. For and on behalf ut@}oard
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg No : 108355W Qtl,\_,h{/

s R

SUNDARAM RAMAMURTHI URVESH MEHTA
(Director) {Director)

APURVAR, SHAH
(PARTNER)

Membership No,- 047166
DIN: 00135602 DIN: 05159766
Place sMumbal
Date : May 27, 2022




4 SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

Income

Revenue from operations 26 14,783.64 15,115.61
Other income 27 3,393.17 761.68
Total Incoine (A) 18,176.81 15,877.29
Expenses

Property acquisition, constructions and development expenses 28 12,397.00 5,366.43
(Increase)/Decrease in inventory 29 (861.38) 6,718.30
Employee benefits expenses 30 491.43 311.65
Finance costs 31 3,722.05 1,321.39
Depreciation 2 33.65 42,41
Other expenses 32 1,764.33 965.67
Total Expenses (B) 17,547.08 14,725.86
Profit before tax (C=A-B) 629.73 1,151.43

| Tax Expense:

(1) Current tax 19 210.00 341.00

(2) Deferred tax 19 (7.01) (8.94)
(3) Tax (credit) / charge of earlier year 13.23 -
Total Tax Expenses (D) 216.22 332.06
Profit after tax (E=C-D) 413.51 819.37

Other Comprehensive Income ('OCI')
0CI not to be reclassifled to profit or loss in subsequent

periods:
Remeasurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans (3.83) 22.34
Income tax effect 0.96 {5.62)
Total Other Comprehensive Income (F) (2.87) 16.72
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (G=E+F) 410.64 836.09

Earning per equity share
[Nominal value per share Rs, 100 previous year Rs. 100]

Basic and Diluted 33 41,351 81,937
Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financlal 2to43

statements

As per our Report of even date
For Rajendra & Co. For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reg No : 108355W
< W qf
Qs | e

APURVA R. SHAH SUNDARAM RAMAMURTHI  URVESH MEHTA
(PARTNER) (Director) (Director)
Membership No. - 047166

DIN: 00135602 DIN: 05159766

Place :Mumbai
Date: May 27,2022




z SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
k2 CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

[A] [CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit before tax 629.73 1,151.43
Adjustments to reconcfle proflt before tax to net cash flow:
- Interest Expenses 8,722.08 1,321.39
- Deprectation 94.81 103.44
- Loss / (Profit) of sale of property, plant and equipments 0.15 (1.44)
- Interest Income (3,274.28) (670.20)
OPERATING CASH PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 1,172.46 1,904.62
ADJUSTMENTS FOR:
- (Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories (861.38) 6,718.30
- (Increase) / Decrease in Trade Recelvables 1,384.96 (2,372.06)
- (Increase) / Decrease {n Other Current and Non-Current assets (1,635.86) 116.05
- Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (489.98) (1,010.62)
- Increase / ( Decrease) in Other Current liabilitles and Other Financial Liabilities 1,281.09 (1.976.24)
- Increase / (Decrease) in Short term provision 83.86 106.16
- Increase / (Decrease) in Long term provisions (149.04) 543.07
Cash Generated From Operations 786,11 4,029.28
Taxes paid (462.25) (166.38)
NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 323.86 3,862,90
¢ 'B] {CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
- Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments (187.05) (7.13)
- Proceeds of Property, Plant and Equipments 0.83 2,37
- Interest Recelved 3,280.21 674.56
- Investmerit in non Cumulative Preference shares (1,000.00) -
- Increase In Short term Loans and advances (3,409.20) (17,436.87)
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES {1,315.21) (16,767.07)
[C] |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
- Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings 3.51 (10,291.79)
- Increase / ( Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings 2,401.70 2,750.60
- Redemptlon of Debentures (1,467.08) -
- Proceeds from Issue of Debentures 500.00 25,220.00
- Interest Expense on Borrowings (3.645.20) (1,321.39)
NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (2,207.07) 16,357.42
Net Increase In cash and cash equivalents (3,198.42) 3,453.25
Add : Balance at the beginning of the year 5,001.43 1,548.18
L Cash and cash equivalents as at the close of the year 1,803.01 5,001.43
Note : Cash and Cash Equivalents Includes ; 1,803.01 5,001.43
Cash in hand 6.85 2.70
Bank OD (3,534.61) (3,188.94)
Balances with scheduled banks:
- In Fixed Deposit accounts 4,710.77 4,507.73
| - In Current Accounts 620.00 3,679.94

DISCLOSURE AS REQUIRED BY IND AS 7
Reconcilfatlon of l{abilities arising from financing activities for the year ended March 31,2022

fince
024.40




SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
5;{ CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Explanatory notes to Statements of Cash Flows:

1. Statement of Cash Flows is prepared in accordance with Ind AS 7 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

2.In Part A of the Cash Flow Statement, flgures in brackets indicate deduction made from the net profit for deriving the net cash flow from operating
activitles, In Part B and Part C, figures in brackets indicate cash outflows.

As per our Report of even date

For Rajendra & Co. For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants

[CAI Firm Reg No : 108355W

APURVA R, SHAH
(PARTNER)
Membership No. - 047166

SUNDARAM RAMAMURTHI URVESH MEHTA
(Director) (Director)

DIN: 00135602 DIN: 05159766
Place :Mumbal

Date: May 27, 2022




SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

A . Equity Share Capital
(Refer Note No 15)

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,000 1.00 1,000 1.00
Issue of equity shares during the year - N = -
Bal at the end of the year 1,000 100 1,000 1.00
B. Other Equity
(Refer Note No 16)

in Lalchs’

T 476227

As atAprl 3, 4,778.09 (15.82) (15.82)

Profit for the year 81937 - 16.72 16.72 836.09
Transfer to debenture redemption reserve (68.00) 68.00 - - 5
As at March 31, 2021 5,529.46 68.00 0.90 0.90 5,598.36
Profit for the year 41351 2 (287 (287) 410.64
Transfer to debenture cedemption reserve (609.00) 609.00 - - .
As at March 31, 2022 5,333.97 677.00 (1.97) (1.97) 6,009.00
Significant accouating policles 1

The accompanying notes ace an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Rajendra & Co.

Chartered Accountants

NG
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ICAI Firm Reg No : 108355%

APURVA R. SHAH SUNDARAM RAMAMURTHI URVESH MEHTA
(PARTNER) (Director) (Director)
Membership No, - 047166

DIN: 00135602 DIN: 05159766

Place :Mumbai
Date : May 27, 2022




=l SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31,2022

Note: 1
? p!m‘;ﬁﬁlf.@xféﬁﬁm LN LA et L IR = RN el _,.'_-. P Al _ ‘ ‘I':'i—f-,-'._'_ by R
SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED (the Company) is a subsidiary of Marathon Nextgen Township Private Limited

that holds 67% of the Paid up share capital and Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited holding 24% of the Paid up share

capital. The Company was incorporated on 10th July, 2001, and is primarily engaged in the business of

construction, development and sale of Restdential real estate Projects. The registered office of the Company is

located at 702, Marathon Max, Mulund-Goregaon Link Road, Mulund (West) - 400080
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S N CanACEOUn NGOl s
a Basis Of Preparation Of Financial Statements :
The Standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind
AS"} as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant
provisions of the Act.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basts, except for certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policles below.
The financial statements are presented in Iridian Rupee (“INR") and all values are rounded to the nearest INR Lakh,
except when otherwise indicated

b  Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value. [Refer Note 17 and Note 20 regarding financial instruments]

¢ Operating Cycle
The normal operating cycle in respect of operation relating to under construction real estate project depends on
signing of agreement, size of the project, phasing of the project, type of development, project complexities,
approvals needed. Accordingly, project related assets & labilities have been classified into current & non-current
based on operating cycle of the respective projects.

d Functional and Presentation Currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the functional currency of the company.

e Use of Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conforiity with recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS
requires the Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. They are based on the historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have financial impact on the Company and are believed to
be prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to these estimates and the differences between the
actual results and the estlmates are recognized in the perlfods in which the results are known/ materialize.

Following are the kev areas of estimation and judgement
¢ Evaluation of Percentage Completion

Determination of revenues under the percentage of completion method necessarily involves making estimates,
some of which are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant, the percentages of completion, costs to
completion, the expected revenues from the project or activity and the foreseeuble lusses to completion. Estimates
of project income, as well-as project costs, are reviewed periodically. The effect of changes, if any, to estimates is

recognized in the financial statements for the period in which such changes are determined.
¢ Impairment of Non Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there Is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indicatlon exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an.asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and its
value in use, When the carrylng amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

« Impairment of Financial Assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about the risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the JSRaiRreR
calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing nditions as well as forward looking esf{f?
end of each reporting period. ?\MENDRA & Co




SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31,2022

« Useful life and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment

Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, In cases,
where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on technical advice.
Assumptions also need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset may be capitalized and which
components of the cost of the asset may be capitalized

* Recognition and Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligatons

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basls of actuarial assumptlons. Key actuarial
assumptions include discount rate, expected return on plan assets, trends in salary escalation and attrition rate, The
discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds.
The period to maturity of the underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post employment
benefit obligations.

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) & Depreciation

¢ Recognition and Measurement

Items of PPE are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item
of PPE comprises:

1. its purchase price, including import duties and non refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts
and rebates.

il. any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by Management

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the jtem to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by Management, are recognised in
Statement of Profit and Loss. If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful

lives. then thev are accounted for as separate items (maior components) of ropertv. plant and eauioment.
+ Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of PPE is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits
from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing PPE,
including repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the Statement of Profit
and Loss for the perfod during which such expenses are incurred.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of PPE is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year of

disposal.
* Depreciation

Depreciation is provided from the date the assets are ready to be put to use, on straight line method as per the
useful life of the tangible assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of The Companies Act, 2013. The residual
values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset. The assets residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Depreciation is calculated on a pro rata
basis from the date of installation / acquisition till the date the assets are sold or disposed. Depreciable amount for

assets is the cost of an asset or amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value
Financial Instruments

The Company classifles financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial Assets

- Initfal recognition and measurement

Financial assets are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value measured én initial recognition of financial assets.

- Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at amortised cost For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three
categories:

¢ Debt instruments at amortised cost

» Derivatives and equity instruments at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (‘FVTPL")
» Equity instruments measured at FVTOCI




SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31,2022

Debt instruments at amortsed cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost using the effectlve interest rate (‘EIR') method if both the
following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows,
and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and
Interest ("SPPI') on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (‘EIR") method, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation {s Included in finance income

in the orofit or loss. The losses arlsing from imvairment are recognised in the orofit or loss.
Equity investinents

All equity investments are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at
Fair Value Through Profit & Loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the
same either as at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL. The Company makes such
selection on an Instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is frrevocable,
If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale of such investments. Equity instruments included within
the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor

retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:

« Financial asset measured at amortised cost

» Financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Expected credit losses are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to:

* 12 months expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date); or

« Full lifetime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life

of the financial instrument)
For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind AS 109, the Company recognises 12 month expected

credit losses for all originated or acquired financial assets If at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial
asset has not increased significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime
expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initlal recognition.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables,
considering historical trend, industry practices and the business environment in which the Company operates or
any other appropriate basis.

The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Habilitles

Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
profit or loss.

Inttial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.
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SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

Subsequent Measurement

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the llabilities are derecognised.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Any difference between proceeds (net of transaction cost) and the redemption amount Is recognised in profit or
loss over the perlod of borrowing using the effective interest rate method.

Fees pald on the establishment of loan facilitles are recognised as transaction cost of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facilitv will be drawn down,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying

amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Inventories :

Inventories comprise of;

(1) Finished Realty Stock representing unsold premises in completed projects

(if) Realty Work in Progress representing properties under construction / development. Inventorles are valued at
lower of cost and net realisable value,

Cost of Realty construction / development is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in proportion to the
revenue recognised during the period and the balance cost is carried over under Inventory as part of either Realty
Work in Progress or Finished Realty Stock. Cost of Realty construction / development includes all costs directly
related to the Profect (including finance cost attributable to the project) and other expenditure as identified by the
Management which are incurred for the purpose of executing and securing the completion of the Project (net off
incldental recoverles / receipts) up to the date of receipt of Occupation Certificate of Project from the relevant
authorities,

Construction Work in Progress includes cost of land, premium for development rights, construction costs, allocated

Interest and expenses incidental to the profects undertaken by the Company.
Revenue Recognition :

Revenue From Contract with Customers :-

The company undertakes the business of construction of residential properties.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, with effect from 01 April 2018, The
Company has applied the following accounting policy for revenue recognition:

Revenue from contract with customer is recognised, on execution of agreement when control of the goods or
services are transferred to the customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is
expected to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services excluding any amount received on behalf of third
party (such as indirect taxes). An asset created by the Company's performance does not have an alternate use and
as per the terms of the contract, the Company has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed till
date. Hence the Company transfers control of a good or service over time and, therefore, satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over time.The Company recognises revenue at the transaction price which is
determined on the basis of agreement entered into with the customer. The Company recognises revenue for
performance obligation satisfied over time only if it can reasonably measure its progress towards complete

satisfaction 6f the nerformance ohligation.
The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue Is recognised.

The Company recognises revenue from contracts with customers for ongoing contracts with customers based on a
five step model as set out in Ind AS 115:

The Company Recognised the revenue using cost based Input method. Revenue is recognised with respect to stage
of completion, which assessed with reference to the proportion of contract cost incurred for work performed to the
estimated total cost of completion of contract. The Company would not be able to reasonably measure its progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation if it lacks reliable information that would be required to
apply an appropriate method of measuring progress.In those circumstances, the Company recognises revenue only
to the extent of cost incurred until it can reasonably measure outcome of the performance obligation

The management reviews and revises its measure of progress periodically and are considered as chan
eéstimates and accordingly, the effect of such changes in es
such changes are determined. @JENDRA
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SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31,2022

Conslderation is adjusted for the time value of money if the perlod between the transfer of goods or services and the
receipt of payment exceeds twelve months and there is a significant financing benefit either to the customer or the
Company.

A contrdct asset is the right to conslderation in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset s recognised for the earned conslderation that is conditional.

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional,

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideratlon before
the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract. A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.¢, only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to
accounting policies of financlal assets in section g above of financial instruments - initial recognition and

subsequent measurement.
Interest Income

Interest income is accounted on accrual basis on a time proportion basis.

Taxation :

Current Tax

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid
to / recovered from the tax authorities, based on estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances
and exemption in accordance with the tax laws as applicable.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities
and their carrylng amount.

Deferred tax asset are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the

manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
nfite aceate and liahilities
Current and Deferred tax for the Year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively
Employee benefits :

a, Short term employee benefits:
Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the
amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a
result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

b. Post Employment Benefits:
Defined benefit plans
Provision for Gratuity is recorded on the basis of actuarial valuation certificate provided by the actuary using
Projected Unit Credit Method. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans fs calculated
separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and
prior perlods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.
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SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31,2022

Borrowing Cost::

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds
and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing.

Borrowlng costs, allocated to qualifying assets, pertaining to the pertod from commencement of activities relating
to construction / development of the qualifying asset upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period which they are Incurred.
Cash and cash equivalents :

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet and cash flow statement comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Earnings per share ;

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS - 33 on ‘Earnings per Share’,
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year by the weighted average number
of Equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or
loss for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year as adjusted for the
effects of all diluted potential equity shares except where the results are anti- dilutive

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets :

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is probable
than ah outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which the reliable estimate can
be made. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present abligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material) and are
determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at
each balance sheet date adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
Leases

Effective 1st April, 2019, the company adopted IND AS 116 - Leases. The Compnay has applied IND AS 116 using
modified retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial application was recognized in
retained earnings at 1st April 2019. The Comparative information presented is not restated. It is presented as
previously reported under IND AS 17,

Company As a lessee

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease
components of the contract and allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relatlve stand-aloné price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
componerits,

The Company recognises right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the lease term at
the lease commencement date. The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying
asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
right-of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of
lease term or useful life of right-of-use asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the
same basis as those of property, plant and équipment. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever
there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in
the statement of brofit and loss.




SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31,2022

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses incremental
borrowing rate, For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basls, may
adopt either the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio
as a whole, The lease payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, residual value guarantees,
exercise price of a purchase option where the Company {s reasonably certain to exercise that option and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease,
The lease liability is subsequently remeasured by Increasing the carrying amount to reflect Interest on the lease
liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount to
reflect any reassessment or lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The
company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease lability due to modification as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset and statement of profit and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there Is a further reduction in the measurement of

the lease liability, the Company recognises any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and
Inge

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to short-term leases of all assets that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments
associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a stralght-line basis over the lease term,
Accounting policy applicable before 1st April 2019
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even If that
right is not explicitly specified in the arrangement.
Company As a lessee
Leases of assets where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Minimum lease payments made under flnance leases are apportioned between the finance charge
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each perlod during the lease term
50 as to produce a constant periodic rate of Interest on the remaining balance of the llability.
The leased assets are measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of thelr fair value and the present value of
the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to that asset.
Leases of assets under which significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor
are classified as operating leases. Lease payments under operating leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. Lease incentives recelved are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.
Recent Accounting Developments :
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. On March 23,
2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notlfied Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2022. This notification has resulted into amendments in the following existing accounting standards, which:
are applicable to company from April 1, 2022.
i Ind AS 101 - First time adoption of Ind AS

fi, Ind AS 109 - Financial Instrument

iii. Ind AS 16 ~ Property, Plant and Equipment

iv. Ind AS 37 -Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Asset




NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Property, plant and equipments

in Lalkths’
Gross block value as at April 1, 2020 953.27 6.07 113.33 238.98 104.06 15,04 1,430.75
Additions during the yenr 2,09 - - - 5.03 - 712
Deletions during the year - - - 232 - . 232
Gross block value as at March 31, 2021 955,36 6.07 113.33 236.66 109.09 15.04 1,435.55
Additions dusing the yeac 1.46 - - 185.23 - 0.36 187.05
Deletions during the year - - - 19.67 - - 19.67
Groas block value as at March 31, 2022 956.82 6.07 113.33 402.22 109.09 15.40 1,602.93
Accumulated deprecintion ne at April 1, 2020 354,88 2.68 88.28 160.65 92.59 10.52 709.60
Depreciation for the year 61.03 0.58 11.61 2472 3.67 1.83 103.44
A Inted depreciation on disy \! - - - 1.40 - - 1.40
A lated depreciation as at March 31, 2021 415.91 3.26 99.89 183.97 96.26 12.35 811.64
Deprecintion for the year 61,17 0.58 511 22.75 3.88 133 94.82
Accumulated deprecintion on disposals - - - 18.69 - . 18.69
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2022 477.08 3.84 108.00 188.03 100.14 13.68 8872.77
Net block as at March 31, 2021 539.45 2.81 13.44 52.69 12,83 2.69 623.91
Net block as at March 31, 2022 479.74 2.23 8.33 214.19 8.95 172 718.16
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

INVESTMENTS (NON-CURRENT)

i NERCh BNl 2o

Investments measured at Amortised cost
In Preference shares of Assoclates (Unquoted)

10,00,000 0% non Cumulative redeemable Preference shares of
Matlrlx Encalves Projects Development Private Limited 618.83 -

Total 618.83 -

During the year, The compnay has invested in non cumulative redeemable preference shares (NCPS) of Matirix
Encalves Projects Development Private Limited by way of part conversion of existing outstanding Inter-
Corporate Deposit. These NCPS redeemable at the option of the NCPS holder at the time after a period of 5 years
from the date of issue of NCPS but before the end of 20 years.

The following shall also be disclosed:

(a) Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value - -
thereof;
(b) Aggregate amount of unquoted investments; and 618.83 -
(c) Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments, - =

LOANS (NON-CURRENT)

cured, Considered good
Loan to related parties (Refer Note 36) 19,552.72 20,616.62

Total 19,552.72 20,616.62
The Principal terms of the MOU with Matrix Enclaves Project Developments Private Limited (MEPDPL) with
respect to inter corporate deposit is that the company would receive 6.25 lakhs square feet of saleable area in
the housing project being constructed by MEPDPL at Dombivali a suburb of Mumbai. It is estimated by the
Company that the market value of this area at that point in time will not be lower than the return that the
company would have otherwise received on its exposure to MEPDPL.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS { NON-CURRENT)

¥ =, S et S T
Bantic 1SR

(Unsecured, Considered good;)

Security deposit for lease (Land Owners) 450.00 450.00
Deposlts with bank

Fixed Deposits with maturity of more than 12 months* 221.04 19.97
Total 671.04 469.97
* Qut of these,

Fixed deposit of HDFC bank Rs. 200.00 lakhs (previous year - Rs. Nil) is pledged against OD facility granted by
HDFC bank up to Rs. 792.00 lakhs (previous year - Rs, 500.00 lakhs).

INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

Advance income-tax [net of provision for taxation] 321.53
Closing Balance 321.53
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

7  OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Banilonla

R VET B0 2R

Fin Lalths]
[ |:|§1!L ’4! ETJ

Prepald component of 0% non convertible Preference Shares of 306,91 -
Matirix Encalves Projects Development Private Limited (redeemable
within 5 years f.e. ending on 21th June 2026)
Other deposits 20.30 20.30
Closing Balance 327.21 20.30
8 INVENTORIES
(T in Lakhs]

2 e l i : "
As Taken Certifled by Management, Valued At Cost
Work in progress 12,684.23 10,765.97
Finished inventories 1,890.89 2,947.77
Total 14,575.12 13,713.74

9 CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 6.85 2.70
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 620.00 3,679.94
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months - 442.80
Total 626.85 4,125.44

10

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS

Depos_lts lth Bank

Fixed deposits with maturity of less than 12 months* 4,489.73 4,044.96
Total 4,489.73 4,044.96
* Qut of these,

i. Fixed deposit of Axis bank Rs.3,500.00 lakhs (previous year - Rs. 3,500.00 lakhs) is pledged against OD facility

granted by Axis bank up to Rs.3,412.50 lakhs.

Fixed deposit of HDFC bank Rs. 600.00 lakhs (previous year - Rs. 500.00 lakhs) is pledged against OD facility

granted by HDFC bank up to Rs. 792.00 lakhs (previous year - Rs, 500.00 lakhs).

Fixed deposit of Rs. 29.90 lakhs (previous year - Rs. 29.06 lakhs) of Axis Bank is lien marked against bank

guarantee issuéd by Axis bank Ltd in favour of Maharashtra Pollution control Board ,Raigad for Rs. 25.00 Jacs.

iv. Fixed deposit of HDFC Bank Rs. 337.34 lakhs (previous year - Rs. Nil) is lien marked against quarterly interest
liability of Redeemable Non Convertlble Debenture (NCD).

ii

118
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SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

11 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured, Considered good

Amount due and receivable from customers (Refer Note 35) 2,654.89 4,110.19
Receivable from related parties (Refer Note 36) 213.73 202.85
Others 101.67 42,22
Total 2,970.29 4,355.26

Trade Receivables agelng ason March 31, 2022

s Sl At S, :.'_..__...._L.__'_,;.'._-_;..:.-...__-._H.. P
I Undisputed Trade Recelvables - considered good

101473 | 436.08|  376.43| 757.65| 228.26

Il Undisputed Trade Recejvables ~ which have
significant Increase in credit risk

1il. Undjsputed Trade Recelvables - credit impaired

1v. Disputed Trade Racelvables - considered good

5.54 60.42

v. Disputed Trade Recelvables ~ which have
significant Increase In credit risk

vl. Disputed Trade Recelvables - credit Impaired

Total

1,014.73 436.08 376.43

utadTmﬂeReceva s - considered nnd

Trade Recelvables ageing as on March 31, 2021

#1. Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase In credit risk

2,063.01 ; 1658 06

118, Undisputed Trade Recelvables - credit impaired

Iv. Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good

59.16

v. Disputed Trade Recelvables - which have significant
increase in credit risk

26.39

28.49 4.28

VL Disputed Trade Receivables - credit Impalred

Tatal

206301 1.658.06

230.65

301.83 5621

4550 | 4:355.26

12 LOANS (CURRENT)

Unsecured Consldered good

Loan to related parties (Refer Note 36) 21,926.63 17,643.69
. |Loan to employees 2.63 1.30

Others 1,952,12 1,763.31

Total 23,881.38 19,408.30

13 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT)

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits - 5.93
Other recelvables 17.15 7.25
Total AADJENDRA & Axy 17.15 13.18

14 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

PAT oA e

.4-_1_.

Prepaid expenses

Advance to suppliers
Balance with government authorities

Prepaid component of 0% non convertible Preference Shares

Total

24.31

1,562.05 525.22
1,149.51 565.58
2,815.33 1,115.11
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

15 SHARE CAPITAL

———— e ——

Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 1,000 1.00 1,000 1.00
TOTAL 1,000 1,00 1,000 1.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP CAPITAL

Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each, fully paid 1,000 1.00 1,000 1.00
TOTAL 1,000 1.00 1,000 1.00

EQUITY SHARE

Shares at the beginning of the year 1,000 1.00 1,000 1.00
Shares fssued during the year - 4 . "
Shares bought back durlng the year - - = =
Outstanding Shares at the end of the year 1,000 1.00 1,000 1.00

b. Rights, preferences and restrictlons attached to Equity shares:
The Company has {ssued and subscribed one class of equity shares having a par value of rupee 100 per share. Each Shareholder is eligible
for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the Equity Shareholders are eliglble to recelve the remaining assets of the company
after distributlon of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

¢. Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited
Marathon Nextgen Townships Pyt Lid 670 67 670 67

d, Details of prometers shares holding in the Company: ‘

arxtgen Realty Limited 240 24.00%
Marathon Nextgen Townships Pvt Ltd 670 67.00% B
910 91.00% -

Marathoen RealtyLimited ' ) . 24.0%
Marathon Nextgen Townships Pvt Ltd 670 67.00% -
910 91.00% -

e. Information regarding issue of shares in the last five years:
i) The Company has not issued any shares for consideration other than cash.
1i) The Company has not issued any bonus shares.
iif) The Company has not undertaken any buy-back of shares.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

16 OTHEREQUITY

A. |Retalned earnings:

Balance at the beginning of the Year 5,529.46 4,778.09
Add :- Profit for the year 413,51 819.37
Less: Transferred to Debenture redemption reserve (609.00) {(68.00)
Balance at the end of the Year 5,333.97 5,529.46
B. |Debenture redemption reserve*
Balance at the beginning of the Year 68.00 -
Additions during the Year 609.00 68.00
Balance at the end of the Year 677.00 68.00
C. |Other Comprehensive Income
Balance at the beginning of the Year 0.90 (15.82)
Additions during the Year (2.87) 16.72
| Balance at the end of the Year (1.97) 0.90
Total Other Equity 6,009.00 5,598.36

Nature and purpose of reserves
a. Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the company has earned till date.

b. Debenture Redemption Reserve
The Company has issued redeemable non-convertible debentures. Accordingly, the Companies (Share
capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 (as amended), requires the Company to create Debenture
Redemption Reserve out of profits of the Company available for payment of dividend.
*The Company is In process of investing the requisite amount in the specified method prescribed under

para (vi) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as amended.
¢. Other Comprehensive Income

Re-measurement of Defined Benefit plan in respect of post employment are changed to Other
Comprehensive Income.

17 BORROWINGS (NON-CURRENT)

Deferred payment llahﬂ!tles*
From banks
Balance outstanding at year end 117.50 392.78
Less : Current maturities on long term debt (Refer Note 20) 99.16 283.35
18.34 10943
From others
Balance outstanding at year end 131.26 9.95
Less ; Current maturities on long term debt (Refer Note 20) 31.23 451
100.03 5.44
Secured Non Convertible Debenture**
Balance outstanding at year end 24,252.92 25,220.00
Less : Current maturities on long term debt (Refer Note 20) 6,143.45 680.00
18.109.47 24,540.00
LCRIENDRA G o~
Total V4 il N\ 18,227.84 24,654.87
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SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

LA

Nature of Security and terms of repayment of secured borrowing :

I *Deferred payments liabilities

A. From Bank

i. Equipment loan amounting to Rs. Nil (previous year - Rs, 13.51 Lakhs) is secured by way of hypothecation
of Property at Mulund named "Marathon Maxima" and fixed deposit of Rs 51 Lakhs. Repayable in 23 equal
meonthly installments starting from April, 2019, Last Installment was due in July, 2021 bearing fixed

Interest rate of 9.85% p.a.

Equipment loan amounting to Rs. Nil (previous year - Rs. 26.62 Lakhs) is secured by way of hypothecation

of Property at Mulund named "Marathon Maxima” and fixed deposit of Rs 148.46 Lakhs. Repayable in 23

equal monthly installments starting from May, 2019, Last Installment was due in July, 2021 bearing fixed

Interest rate of 9.85% p.a.

Iil. Equipment loan amounting to Rs. Nil (prévious year - Rs. 122.26 Lakhs) {s secured by way of
hypothecation of Property at Mulund named "Marathon Maxima", Repayable in 23 equal monthly
installments starting from September, 2019, Last Installment was due in November, 2021 bearing fixed
interest rate 0of 9.80% p.a.

lv. Equipment loan amounting to Rs. 51.72 Lakhs (previous year - Rs. 92.57 Lakhs) is secured by way of
hypothecation of Property at Mulund named "Marathon Maxima". Repayable in 36 equal monthly
installments starting from February, 2020, Last Installment {s due in May, 2023 bearing fixed interest rate
0f 9.80% p.a.

v. Equipment loan amounting to Rs. 13.65 Lakhs (previous year - Rs. 38,70 Lakhs) is secured by way of
hypothecation of Property at Mulund named "Marathon Maxima". Repayable In 23 equal monthly
installments starting from November, 2020, Last Installment is due in September, 2022 bearing fixed
interest rate of 9.80% p.a.

vi. Equipment loan amounting to Rs. 22.16 Lakhs (previous year - Rs. 52.42 Lakhs) is secured by way of
hypothecation of Property at Mulund named "Marathon Maxima", Repayable in 23 equal monthly
installments starting from January, 2021, Last Installment is due in November, 2022 bearing fixed interest
rate of 9.80% p.a.

vii. Equipment loan amounting to Rs. 10.44 Lakhs (previous year - Rs. 29.73 Lakhs) is secured by way of
hypothecation of Property at Mulund named "Marathon Maxima". Repayable in 23 equal monthly
installments starting from November, 2020, Last Installment is due in September, 2022 bearing fixed
interest rate of 10.00% p.a.

viii, Equipment loan amounting to Rs. 6.22 Lakhs (previous year - Rs. 14.61 Lakhs) is secured by way of
hypothecation of Property at Mulund named "Marathon Maxima". Repayable in 23 equal monthly
Installments starting from January, 2021, Last Installment is due in November, 2022 bearing fixed interest
rate of 10.00% p.a.

ix. Vehicle loan amounting to Rs. 13.31 lakhs (previous year - Rs, Nil) is secured by way of hypothecation of
the vehicle. It is Repayable in 60 monthly installments starting from February, 2022. Last installment is
due In January, 2027, bearing Fixed Interest Rate of 7.25% p.a

|

B. From Others
i. Vehicle loan amounting to Rs. Nil (previous year - Rs. 1.01 Lakhs) is secured by way of hypothecation of
the vehicle. It is Repayable in 59 monthly installments starting from May, 2016. Last installment was due
in May, 2021, bearing Fixed Interest Rate of 9.48% p.a
il. Vehicle loan amounting to Rs. 2.17 Lakhs (previous year - Rs. 3.96 Lakhs) is secured by way of
hypothecation of the vehicle. It is Repayable in 60 monthly installments starting from May, 2018. Last
installment is due in Apr, 2023, bearing Fixed Interest Rate of 8.78% p.a
lii. Vehicle loan amounting to Rs. 2.87 Lakhs (previous year - Rs. 4.90 Lakhs) is secured by way of
hypothecation of the vehicle. It is Repayable in 60 monthly installments starting from July, 2018. Last
installment is due in June, 2023, bearing Fixed Interest Rate of 8.94% p.a
iv. Vehicle loan amounting to Rs. 21.30 lakhs (previous year - Rs. Nil) is secured by way of hypothecatlon of
the vehicle, It is Repayable in 36 monthly installments starting from October, 2021. Last installment is due
in September, 2024, bearing Fixed Interest Rate of 7.32% p.a
v. Vehicle loan amounting to Rs. 104.92 lakhs (previous year - Rs. Nil) is secured by way of hypothecation of
the vehicle. It is Repayable in 60 monthly installments starting from February, 2022. Last installment is
due in January, 2027, bearing Fixed Interest Rate of 6.97% p.a
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II. **Non Convertible Debentures
The Company has outstanding 2572 (previous year - 2552) Redeemable Non Convertible Debenture (NCD)
of face value of Rs. 9.43 lakhs (previous year - Rs. 10,00 lakhs) each.
A. Face Value : Rs. 9.43 lakhs (previous year - Rs, 10.00 lakhs) per debenture,
B. Coupon Rate : HDFC PLR f.e. 16,10% minus 0.95% spread per annum accrued on a monthly basls,
effective rate is 15.15%. p.a.
C. Security:
1. First ranking exclustve charge by way of martgage over the land admeasuring 6.68 acres forming part of
the project (Project), and all structures (whether present or future) thereon, together with all benefits
and/or entitlements arising out of or in connection with the aforesaid land and/or the project, along with
corresponding development rights and all present and future development potential (including but not
limited to floor space index, transferable development rights and/or any other benefit, by whatver name
called). The security over undlvided share of land pertaining to the 4 towers of the Project (being lon,
Vega, Antilia and Triton) (dditional Towers) of Phase I of the project would be released on the below
conditions:
a, 15.0% all gross receivables from the Additional Towers would be utilised solely for debt servicing of
the NCD's;
b. A second ranking charge by way of mortgage over the additional Towers to be created in favour of the
debenture trustee (for the benefit of the NCD holders);
¢. A second charge by way of hypothecation over cash flows over Additional Towers to be created in
favour of the debenture trustee (for the benefit of the NCD holders).
if. first ranking exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over ISRA and the project collection account
where the receipts from the Project are collected (Project Collection Account) and all other bank accounts
of the Issuer (ISRA). Project Collection Account and all other bank accounts of the Issuer are collectively
referred to as the Charged Accounts);
iif. first ranking exclusive charge by way of hypothecation over moveable assets of the Project;
1v. second ranking pledge over 91% of the issued and paid up share capital of the issuer (wherein the
proceeds of any enforcement of the pledge will be based on terms mutually agreed between the debenture
holders of the NCDs and the Proposed New Lender;
v. guarantees issued by the guarantors (being Marathon Realty Pvt. Ltd., Marathon Nextgen Township Pvt.
Ltd., Mr., Chetan Shah and Mr. Mayur Shah);
D. the Repayment of the NCD shall be made in Quarterly installments after a moratorium period of 12
Months.
E. NCD shall be fully redeem in the 4th Quarter of Year 2024-25.

18 PROVISIONS (NON CURRENT)

(X In Lakhs)

Provision for employee

Provision for gratuity 84.99 70.40
Provision for compensated absences 24.75 23.25
Others 2,556.16 2,721.29
Total 2,665.90 2,814.94

19 DEFFERED TAX LIABILITIES
RS AV AT BTN 0 22 I VAT C R0

A TERED AGCOUS

Deferred tax liabilities on account of :
Depreciation on fixed assets 43.56 47.23
Deferred tax assets on account of :
Disallowances under section 43B 30.76 26.46
Deferred Tax Assets 30.76 26.46
AlTDR—A\E A
Total AU N 12.80
*
* MUMBAI
Q &,
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SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

a. Movement In Deferred Tax Assets/ Llabilitles
For the Year ended 31 March 2021

piila;
[} [ " ‘- A | -
Property, plantand equipment

TE | ;. 4723
Employee benefits {29.97) (2.11) (5.62) (26.46)
Total 24.09 (8.94) (5.62) 20.77

For the Year ended 31 March 2022

; I I ITER R R EIN e i I.' ; — £ ah X i i Jj.l L} 5 .' i : h' & ) 24
Property, plant and equipment 47.23 {3.67) 43.56
Employee benefits (26.46) (3.34) 0.96 {30.76)

[Total 20.77 (7.01) 0.96 12.80

b. A reconcillation of the income tax expenses to the amount computed by applylng the statutory Income tax rate to the proflt before
Income taxes Is summarized below:

Enacted Income tax rate 2517%
Profit before tax 629,73
Current tax on profit before tax at enacted rates 158.49

Tax efTect of the amounts not deductible/(taxable) in
calculating taxable Income

Expenses disallowances (Net) 36,11 56,10
Others 15.40 {5.10)
Total 210.00 341.00
Grand Total (a+h) 202.99 332.06
| EfTectlve Tax Rate 32.23% 2B.84%)

20 BORROWINGS (CURRENT)

Current maturities of long-term debt (Refer Note 17)
- For Banks
Equlpment Loan 96.77 283,35
Vehicle Loan 2,39 -
- For Financlal Institutions
Vehicle Loan 31.23 4.51
Non Convertible Debenture 6,143.45 680.00
Bank overdraft 3,534.61 3,188.94
Loan rom related partles 7,645.59 5,086.42
Total 17,454.04 9.243.22

* The company has avalled an overdraft facllity to Rs 3,412,550 lakhs from Axls Bank bearing an Interest
rate @ 4.50% to 7.90% p.a, The overdraft facllity s granted agalnst the security/collateral of flxed deposit
/ term depositaggregating to Rs 3500.00 lakhs, The fixed deposit would earn the Interest rate @ 4,00% to
7.40% p.a.

*The company has avalled an Overdraft facllity to Rs 800.00 lakhs (previous year - Rs. 500.00 lakhs) from
HDFC Bank Ltd bearing an Interest rate @ 0.50% p.a, above the Interest rate on Fixed Deposlt. The OD
Faclllty Is granted against the security/collateral of Fixed Deposit/Term deposit aggregating to Rs. 792,00
lakhs (previous year - Rs, 500.00 lakhs). The FD would earn the Interest rate @ 4.40% to 4.90% p.a.

21 TRADE PAYABLE

L 2
Carrled at amortised cost

Due to Mlcro and Small enterprlses 862,14 319.61
Other than Micro and Small enterprises 1,505,97 2.538.49
Trade Payables 2,368.11 2,858.10
Trade Payables to related parties 228,51 499,91
Trade Payables to Others 2,139.60 2,358.19
Total 2.368.11 2,858,10

* To comply with the requirement of The Mlcro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006,
the Company requested its suppllers to confirm it whether they are covered as Micro, Small or Medium
enterprise as Is deflned In the sald Act Based on the communication recelved from such suppllers
conflrming thelr coverage as such enterprise, the compaiy has recognized them for the necessary
treatment as provided under the Act, from the date of receipt of such confirmations and are disclosed in
‘note below.
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SANVO RESORTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

uhpa lie

and small enterprises

- Interest due thereon

16 of the MSMED Act. 2006,

a t t! |

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remalning 979.57 367.03
nd of each accountl
- Principal amount outstanding (whether due or not) to micro 862.14 319.61
11743 4742 |
The amount of Interest pald by the Company In terms of sectlon - -
The amount of payment made to the suppller beyond the - -
Amount of interest due and payable on delayed payments - -
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end 117.43 4742

ii. Others

Total

29.2 - 862.14
__ 1,228.49 74.70 174.81 27,97 1,505.97
itf, Disputed dues - MSME - . . i =
tv. Disputed dues - Others - - . = n
1,998.07 138.04 204.03 27.97 2,368.11

1,637.09

iit, Disputed dues - MSME

lv. Disputed dues - Others

Total

1,897.63

177.47

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

M [fiMarc s 022 i Emanchiar
Interest accrud but not due 160.53 83.68
Temporary book over draft since cleared 109,74 15.51
Employee dues payable 95.21 58.41
Other payables 442,93 96.08
Total 80841 253.68
PROVISIONS (CURRENT)

[EET

=7

Faligls

rovision for ployee benef e

Provision for compensated absences 9.64 B.08
Provision for gratuity 3.83 341
Others
Provision for Expenses 117,43 47.42
Other 183.58 166.89
Total 31348 225.80
CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

% In Lakhs’

Provislon for taxation (net of advance Inconie-tax) - 189.02
Total - 189.02

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Outstanding dutles and taxes 142.77 113.95
Advances recelved from customers (Refer Note 35} 23,577.74¢ 22,791.22
Other payables 1.25 13.37
Total 23,721.76 22,918.54
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SANVO RESORT PRIVATE LIMITED

¢

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

26 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of residential properties 14,783.64 15,115.61

Total 14,783.64 15,115.61
27 OTHERINCOME

Interest income on loans and advances 3,001.24 402,23
Interest income on fixed deposits 250.89 257.43
Interest recefved on staff loan 0.27 0.18
Interest on {ncome tax refund 7.69 -

Interest recelved on delayed payments from customers 14,19 10.35
Income from flat cancellation 527 3.65
Management fee from soclety 44,25 51,93
Miscellaneous balance written back 0.06 0.02
Other miscellaneous {iiicome 13.28 34.45
Interest on Preference Shares measured at amortised cost 52.68 -

Rental Income 3.35 -

Proflt of sale of property, plant and equipments - 144
Total 3,393.17 761.68

28 PROPERTY ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION & DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

Approval and government fees 50.80 23.39
Purchase of construction and other materials 4,994.81 1,147.12
Construction and development expenses 5,863.60 2,876.16
Project finance cost 984.68 816.65
Lease rent.expenses 503.11 503.11
Total 12,397.00 5,366.43

29 (INCREASE) / DECREASE IN INVENTORY

Opening Work In progress 10,765.97 16,949.07
Opening finished inventories 2,947.77 3,482.97
Less :- Closing work in progress 12,684.23 10,765.97
Less :- Closing finished inventories 1,890.89 2,947.77
Total (861.38) 6,718.30

30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

T in Lakhs
ATCHIBHRZ 022 | EVETCHE IR

Salaries and wages 407.65 254.33
Contribution to provident and other funds 4092 2782
Gratuity * 14.52 18.35
Leave Encashment ™ 5.49 8.41
ESOP Expenses™* 22.85 2.74
Total 491_.{!3 311.65

* Refer note 34 of disclosure on employee benefits.

**The Holding Company (Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited ("MNRL")) has Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOP) in force.
Based on such ESOP scheme, parent entity has granted an ESOP option to acquire equity shares of MNRL that would vest
in a grade manner to company's employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, MNRL has charged the fair value of
such stock options, Compnay has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost.
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SANVO RESORT PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31,2022

31 FINANCE COST

Interest expense 4,583.12 2,093.01
Other finance cost - 0.32
Interest on Preference Shares measured at amortised cost 52.68 -

Interest on delay payments 70.93 44,71
Total FInance Cost 4,706.73 2,138.04
Less :- Finance cost capitalised to Inventory 984.68 816.65
Total 3,722.05 1,321.39

32 OTHEREXPENSES

RV GHEBHNEZ 022 WY

VSRR 02|

< in Lakhs)

Power, fuel and water charges 41.01 22,01
Insurance 10.98 5.56
Audltor's remuneration

- for statutéry Audit 4.00 3.00

- for tax Audit 1.00 1.00

- for certificate and other servicces 1.38 1.38
Legal and professional fees 53.74 58.84
Postage, telephone and telegram 6.09 281
Printing and stationery 314 1.37
Travelling and conveyance 6.59 12,93
Motor car expenses 21.84 14.94
Rates and taxes 2297 103.14
Rent 75.70 75.70
Donation 0.60 1112
CSR expenses (Refer Note 39) 2091 23.00
Hiring charges 2.01 0.32
Office expenses 33.05 19.83
Compensation paid against flat 577.82 156.54
Business promotion expenses 3 . 9.22
Discounts and rebates 419.44 61.04
Advertisement expenses 15411 108.10
Sales brokerage 307.44 273.82
Lass on sale of property, plant and equipments 0.15 -
Miscellaneous expenses 0.36 s
Total —1,764.33 965.67

33 EARNING PER SHARE

pATiHENIajS, e S R A SR VT BN 0 2720 v
L.|Net Profit attributable to equity shareholders:
Net profit after tax as per Statement of profit and loss avallable for equity 41351 B819.37
shareholders
[L.|Number of equity shares

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 1,000
Add:- Shares allotted durlng the year -
Number of equity shares at the end of the year 1,000

Welghted average number of equity shares
a. For basic earnings 1,000
b. For diluted earnings 1,000

Face value per Equity Shares 100

1L [Earnings per equlity share (Basic and Dlluted) 41,351

< in Lakhs - Except Equity share data




&= SANVO RESORT PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

a.

Employ: ntribution to provldet fand .

36.49

Employers contribution to ESIC fund 3.54 2.40
| Debited to Statement of profit and loss 40.03 26.60

Defined Benefit Plan (Gratuity) and other Long-term Employee Benefits (Leave Encashment)

The Company provides for gratulty for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Einployees who are in continuous service for a perifod of 5
years are eliglble for gratulty. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination Is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed
proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service, The gratuity plan Is not funded and payout {s done by company on resignation /

retirement of employees.

Deflned Benefit Plan

Reconclliation of opening and closing balances of defined benefit obligations

Disclosure as per Valuation Reports of Independent Actuary
A, Movement In obligation

Change in present value of obligations

Deflned beneflt obligation at the beginning of the year 73.80 90.65 3133 28.45
Current service cost 8.81 11.62 2,75 3.86
Interest cost 570 6.73 2,12 1.95
Past service cost - - - D
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 3.83 (22.34) 0.62 2.61
Remeasurements - Due to financial assumptions (4.51) (2.87) - -
Remeasurements - Due to demographic assumptions - - - -
Remeasurements - Due to experience adjustments 8.34 (19.48) - -
Benefits pald (3.32) {12.85) (3.43) {5.53)
Deflned beneflt obligation at the end of the year 88.82 73.80 33.39 31.33 |

B, Amounts recognized In the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current service cost 8.81 11.62 2,75 3.86
[nterest cost 5.70 6.73 212 195
Past sérvice cost - - - -
Actuarlal [Gains)/L.osses - - 0.62 2.61
Amonnt racognized in profit ar lass 14.51 18.35 5.49 241
Remeasurements - Due to financial assumptions (4.51) (2.87) - -
Remeasurements - Due to demographie assumptions - . - .
Remeasurements - Due to experience adfustments 8.34 19.4R) - -
Amount recognlzed in OCI 3.83 (22.24) - .
Total amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss 18.34 3.991 5.49 8.41 |

C. Amount recognized in Balance Sheet

Present value of obligation
Palr value of plan assets

Amount recognized in Balance Sheet

*

&,
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SANVO RESORT PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

D, Assumptions

The principal actuarial assumptions.used for estimating the Company's defined benefit obligations and other long term employee benefits are set out below:

: HERS TR AN G| by

1AL 2012-14 2-14 Uldmate [[AL 2012-14 Ultimate |[AL 2012.14 Ultimate
Ultimate

Method Projected Unit Projected Unit Credit |Projected Unit Credit  |Projected Unit Credit
Credit Method Mathod Method Method

Retirement Age 60yrs 60 yrs 60yrs 60 yrs

Expected Return on Plan Assets N/A N/A N/A N/A

Withdrawal Rates Ages20-30:10% |Ages 20-30:10 % Ages 20-30:10 % Ages 20-30:10 %
Ages 31-40: 5% Ages 31-40: 5% Ages 31-40; 5% Ages 31-40: 5%
Ages: 41 and above: [Ages: 41 and above: 2|Ages: 41 and above: 2 |Ages: 41 and above: 2
2%

Discount Rate per annum 7.45% 7.45% 7.05% 7.05%

Rate of increase In compensation levels 7% 7% 7% 7%

E, Sensitivity Analysis
The sensltivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the

Sla[z escalation rate + 1

32.34

Salary escalation rate - 1%

34.52

30.32 |

Attritlon Rate + 1% 97.52 74.90 34.51 30.72
Attrition Rate - 1% 80.52 72.46 32.32 31.98
Discount rate + 1% 90.67 65.29 32.75 30.33
[Discount rate - 1% 86.62 84.00 34,08 3241

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period and may not be representative of the actual change. It Is based on a change In the key assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. When
calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the method (Projected Unit Credit Method) used to calculate the Hability recognized In the balance sheet has been
applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysls did not change compared with the previous period.

F. Maturity Profile

Year 2 X 6.87
Year 3 3.89 5.56
Year 4 504 4.54
Year 5 A.06 3.68
Year 6-10 23.20 1021
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SANVO RESORT PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

S TR AT o S e

(1) Reconcillation of revenue recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss
The following table discloses the reconciliation of amount of revenue recognised :

Revenue frorn Operations .

Revenue recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

14,783.64

15,115.61

Less: Significant financing component

Add: Customer incentive/benefits.

Total Revenue as per Contracted Price

14,783.64

15,115.61

(i) Contract Balances

The table that provides information about receivables,contract assets and contract liabilitles from contract with customers as
follows

ER———

it ) S Al e i} LiriEH
Trade Recelvables 2 654 89 4,110.19
Contract Assets "
Contract Liabilitles &3,577.74 22,791.22

Changes in Contract Liabilities balances during the Year as follows

Contract Liability

in Lalhs)

ETCHIGIHZ02HES

At the beginning of the Reporting Period 22,791.22 24,495.67
Less: Revenue recognised during the year from balances at the beginning 1,082.51 (1,629.10)
of the year, net off advances received during the year not recognised as

revenue

Refunded due to cancellation of contract (295.99) (75.35)
At the end of the reporting perlod 23,577.74 22,791.22

HAEDIRARINVEDIS GIIUSURES]

. NAME OF THE RELATED PARTIES AND RELATIONSHIP :

Name Relationship

Marathon Nextgen Township Pvt Ltd (MINTPL) Holding Company

Marathon Nextgen Realty Ltd (MINRL) Ultimate Holding Company

Tetrapolis Asset Pvt Ltd (TAPL) Fellow Subsidiary

?;‘::;aﬁi:amamth! ]- Key Management Personnel of Company
Chetan R Shah (CRS)

Chetan R Shah HUF (CRS-HUF)

Kaivalua C Shah (KCS) Key Management Personnel of Holding Company
Samyag M Shah (SmS)

Parmeet Mayur Shah (PMS)

Matrix Enclaves Projects Development Prvate Limited (MEPDPL)
Matrathon Realty Private Limited (MRPL)
Vinotak Investment Private Limited (VIPL)
Marathon Energen LLP (MELLP)

United Builders (UB)

United Enterprises (UE)

Nexzone Fiscal Services Pvt Ltd (NFSPL)
Nexzone Buildcon LLP (NzBLLP)

Nexzone Enesgy Utilities LLP (NzZENULLP)
Hatiyali Estate Private Limited (HEPL)

RZ Shah Tust (RZS T'rust)

IXOXI Equip Hire LLP (IXELLP)

IXOXI Construction LLP (IXCLLP)

Entities over which KKMP or their relatives
excise significant influence
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SANVO RESORT PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

Related party transactions during the year:

Interest Expénse
Marathon Realty Private Limited = 41.06
Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited 739.74 79.81
United Enterprises - 22.07
Interest Income
Marathon Realty Private Limited 2,463.29
Terrapolis Asset Private Limited 11,75 1.26
Vinotak Investment Private Limited 298.22 195.87
United Builders - 0.19
United Enterprises 1.41 -
IXOXI Equip Hire LLP 3.25 11.43
IXOXI Construction LLP 2745 18.10
Loan taken
Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited 2,285.00 6,749.97
Loan repaid
Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited 389.10 1,739.87
Kaivalya C Shah 2.50 -
Loan and advances repaid
Marathon Realty Private Limited 5,408.41 11,869.09
Terrapolis Asset Private Limited 2.74 2.05
Vinotak Investment Private Limited 339.50 1,268.71
Matrix Enclaves Projects Development Private Limited 191.78 169.00
United Builders - 10.18
United Enterprises 2.62 1,495.59
IXOXI Equip Hire LLP 41.75 174.98
Kaivalya C Shah - 2.50
IXOXI Construction LLP 35.20 63.00
Loan and advances given
Marathon Realty Private Limited 6,580.24 28,150.80
Terrapolis Asset Private Limited - 95.00
Vinotak Investment Private Limited 968.00 2,066.34
Matrix Enclaves Projects Development Private Limited 137.20 1,504.86
United Builders - 10.00
United Enterprises 7.50 1,521.94
IXOXI Equip Hire LLP 22.20 193.26
IXOXI Construction LLP 1.19 284.01
Subscription of Preference Shares
Matrix Enclaves Projects Developrnent Private Limited 1,000.00 -
Purchase of Material
Marathon Realty Private Limited : 1.05
Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited - 0.01
Terrapolis Asset Private Limited 0.49 -
Matrix Enclaves Projects Development Private Limited | S 0.54
Marathon Energen LLP A ENDRA ,E, aQ \ 0.61 m 2.36
United Enterprises porsall N &) - AN\ 011
Nexzone Fiscal Services Pvt Ltd (x( MUMEAT e ) (Y 0.03
8 Yﬁ‘ v
TerEnroeos
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SANVO RESORT PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

Nexzone Buildcon LLP 11.75 =
Sale of Material

Marathon Realty Private Limited 1.03 0.08

Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited 33.22

Terrapolis Asset Private Limited 2.98 8.33

Matrix Enclaves Projects Development Private Limited - 29.06

Marathon Energen LLP 0.32 1.34

United Builders | 18.78

United Enterprises : ; - 0.01

Nexzone Fiscal Services Pvt Ltd , E ' 1.47

Nexzone Buildcon LLP 0.03 0.07

Nexzone Energy Utilitles LLP 9.43 58.05

IXOX} Equip Hire LLP - (0.00)
Rent/Hiring Charges

Marathon Realty Private Limited 89.33 | .  83.65

IX0XI Equip Hire LLP ) 69.93 34.29
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

RZ Shah Trust 20.91 23.00
ESQP Expenses

Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited 25.59 -
Departmental Labor Expenses

1X0XI Construction LLP 563.48 261.68
Reimbursément of Expenses

Marathon Realty Private Limited 2 17.94 -

Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited 0.76 F

Nexzone Buildcon LLP = 19.15

Nexzone Enéergy Utilities LLP 0.27 -

Harlyali Estate Pvt. Ltd. - 0.14

Parmeet Mayur Shah , 28.60 28.66

Samyag M Shah I 2.92

RZ Shah Trust 9 8.60

Chetan R Shah - HUF ' - 3.72

. Related party closing balances as on balance sheet date:
(X In Lakhs)
] Asat Asat

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Borrowings

Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited ZREN & dn 7,645.59 5,083.92

Kaivalya C Shah £ N - 250,

f\" (\ MUMBAL 71;/]

Loans and Advances o | S

Marathon Realty Private Limited AT A!".‘“.ﬂ\_)“‘@ 17,974.52 14,585.85

Terrapolis Asset Private Limited R il 106.74 98.91

Vinotak Investment Private Limited 3,821.05 2,924.16

Matrix Enclaves Projects Development Private Limited 19,324.27 20,378.85

United Enterprises 12.09 594

IXOXI Equip Hire LLP 12.22 28.85

IXOXI Construction LLP 22845 | o0 237.76




-oef SANVO RESORT PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31,2022
Other Receivables
Nexzone Buildcon LLP - 0.69
Hariyali Estate Pvt. Ltd, B 0.05
Samyag M Shah - 0.57
RZ Shah Trust - 1.66
Chetan R Shah - HUF - 1.13
Other Payable |
Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited 2.74
Trade Receivables
Marathon Realty Private Limited 0.91 3.08
Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited 21.73 -
Terrapolis Asset Private Limited 80.17 87.79
Matrix Enclaves Projects Development Private Limited 33.84 33.84
Marathon Energen LLP = 10.87
United Builders 6.16 0.81
Nexzone Fiscal Services Pyt Ltd 0.26 0.47
Nexzone Buildcon LLP - 0.07
Nexzone Energy Utilitles LLP 70.66 63.00
Parmeet Mayur Shah - 2,92
Trade Payables
Marathon Realty Private Limited - 332.77
Marathon Nextgen Realty Limited 3 0.01
Matrix Enclaves Projects Development Private Limited 0.54 0.54
Marathon Energen LLP = 33.84
United Enterprises ) 0.10 0.10
Nexzone Fiscal Services Pvt Ltd 0.73 0.03
Nexzone Buildcon LLP 11,75 -
IXOXI Equip Hire LLP 65.63 18.06
IX0XI Construction LLP 149.75 114.07




£ SANVO RESORT PRIVATE LIMITED

\ NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31,2022

Bank Gurantee/LC issued by Bank on behalf of company

i Axls Bank Ltd has given bank guarantee of Rs.25 lakhs (previous year - Rs. 25 lakhs) on behalf of company to Maharashtra
Pollution control Board.

RERA Legal Cases

i Several buyers from project "Marathon Nexzone" at Panvel have approached RERA on various matters that are in different stages of
litigatlon. At this stage, the liability that may arlse on account of the litigation by the buyers is not ascertainable except in 19
(previous year - 15 cases) such cases where RERA has adjudged in favour of the buyers and directed Company to pay interest as
compensation, which is estimated by the Management amounting to Rs. 272 lakhs (previous year - Rs. 232 lakhs) till March 2022,

! The Company has filed appeals before the Appellate Tribunal of the Maharashtra RERA and has deposited with RERA the requisite

amount wherever necessary.

| DIRECT TAXES

! fii Disputed Tax Liabilities related to AY 2016-17, AY 2017-18 and AY 2019-20 not provided for Rs. Nil (previous year - Rs. 26.16

' lakhs)

| INDIRECT TAXES

- iv. The Company is developing a residential complex at Panvel- known as "Marathon Nexzone" as part of a “Rental Housing Scheme” in

, terms of an agreement entered into with the Mumbai Metropolitan Region Development Authority(MMRDA), In terms of the said

| agreement the company is to construct low cost rental buildings to be handed over to the MMRDA and In leu of which the Company

I would be entitled to three timés Floor Space Index on the area so handed over for its own development. The Company has in the

i past availed Cenvat Credit on such Rental housing construction,

The Company continues to avail of the input tax on rental buildings constructed for MMRDA under the provisions of the Goods and
Services Tax Act

v The service tax department has raised a demand on the company for Rs. 83.76 Lakhs (Previous Year - 83.76 lakhs) for claming
i ineligible Input credit of Service tax. The Company has filed the appeals before the CESTAT.
' vi The Goods and Service tax department has raised a demand on the company for Rs. Nil (Previous Year - 2.12 Lakhs) for Interest &
Penalty on claming Krishi Kalyan cess in Trans-1. The Company has filed the appeals before the Commissioner appeals.

The Company primarily operates in
reporatble segments

cpenditil mGorponateaSocia ANl At e R P
135 of the Companies Act provide applicability of the CSR to a Company i.e,
(2) net worth of the company to be Rs 500 crore or more;

(b) turnover of the comparniyto be Rs 1000 crore or more;

(c) net profit of the company to be Rs 5 crore or more.

As the Net profit of the company is more than Rs. 5 Crores, CSR Rule is Applicable. Refer disclosure below :-

® in Lakhs)
Corporate Soclal Responsibility Expenditure FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
a. Gross amount required to be spent as per Section 135 of the Companies 2091 22.59
: b. Amount spent during the year towards :
School actlvities 2091 23.00
Unspend Amount - -

Cumulative Unspend Amount -
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, trade and other payable. The main pucpose of financial liabilities is to manage
finance for the Company's operations. The Company has Joan and other recelvables, trade and other recelvable and cash and shoct term deposits that
arise dizectly from its opertions. The Company's activities exposes it to vasiety of financial sk as follows:

i Market Risk
ii Credit Risk
{ii Liquidity Risk

SeoT Lo o ! i e

i Market Risk
Masket risk is the risk that the fair value ot future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market prices, Market prices
comprise theee types of risks: currency mte risk, intecest zate risk and other price risks, such as equity price rsk and commodity risk. Tinancial
justruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowlngs, deposits, investments, and dervative financial instruments, Foreign cucrency risk is
the risk that the faie value or futore cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foteign exchange rates. Interest rate sisk is
the sk that the Fie value or future cash flows of a finencial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market intecest rates. This is based on the
financial assets and financial inbilities held as at Mazch 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

The sensitivity analysis excludes the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of post-employment bencfit abligations
provisions and on the non-financial assets and liabilities, The scasitivity of the relevant Statement of Profit and Loss item is the effect of the assumed
changes in the respective macket risks, The Company’s activities expose it to vasiety of finandial risks, including integest rates.

a Interest rate risk and senaitivity
The Company's exposuse to the risk of changes In market interest rates relates primarily to Jong term debt, The risk is planned to be managed by
having a portfolio fixed rate debt. As ar 31st March 2022, borcowings are at fixed xate except Redeemable Mon Convertible Debentuee issued to Asia
Real Estate 11 India Opportunity Trust. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

For the year ended 31st March 2022

INR Borrowing -100 (242.53)
For the year ended 31st Macch 2021 +100 252.20 '5;? ‘@’
INR Borrowing -100 (252.20) & TERED AGCUU“‘P‘

b Financial instruments and cash deposits
The Company considers factors such ns track record, size of the institution, market teputation and secvice standacds to select the banks with which
balances and deposits are maintained, The Company dos not maintain significant cash and deposit balances other than those requited for its day to
day operations.

¢ Competition and price risk
The Company faces competition from local competitors, Nevertheless, it believes that it has competitive advantage in terms of high quality products
and by continuously upgmding its expertise and gange of products to meet the needs of its customers.

ii Credit Riske
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer Or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Company’s cecelvables from costomers, loans and investment in debt securities. Credit risk is managed through credit
approvals, establishing ceedit limits and continuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company graats credit terms in the
sormal course of business, The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in
respect of teade and other receivables and investments.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 315t Masch, 2022 and 31st Masch, 2021 s the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

a Trade and Othet Receivablea
Customer credit sisk for realty sales ls managed by entedng into sale agreements in the case of sale of under-constmetion flats/premises which
stipulate construction milestone Dased payments and interest clauses in case of delays and also by requiring customers to pay the total agreed sale
value before handover of possession of the premises/ flats, thereby substantially eliminating the Company's credit risk in this respect. Ini the case of
sale of finished units, sale agreements are executed only upon/against full payment.

Impairment

Expected credit loss assessment for customers as at 31st March 2021 and 315t March 2022;
Exposures to: custonmers outstanding at the end of each reporting period are reviewed by the Company to determine incurred and expected credit
Josses. Historical trends of impairment of trade recelvables do not reflect any significant credit losses. Given that the macroeconomic indicators
affecting customers of the Company have not undergone any substantial change, the Company expects the historical trend of minimal crgff gt
continue, Fucther, management believes that the unimpaired amounts that arc past due by more than 30 days are still colléctable ing
historical payment behavior and extensive analysis of customer credit risk. In view of the above, the Company helieves that no pro 10
as per expected creditloss method. *
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b Loans

The loans and advances ace in the nature of advances for project in SPVs and hence the risk is minimal. Based on the above factors and historical
data, loss on collection of receivables is not material and henace no additional provision was made.

Expected credit loss assessment of loans as at 31 March 2021 and 31st March 2022:

Considering the nature of the business, the Company has a policy to provide loans in the nature of project advance to its group entities / related
parties for undertaking projects, based on its primary business real estate development through project partners. The loans given to these entities are
repayable on demand and there is no past history for any default/delay/irregularity in repayments based on demands made. Moreover, all the group
entities to whom loans have been advanced, have substantial potential in the projects to repay the loan based on the valuation of such entities and
their activities are controlled and managed by the Company. Accordingly ,on view of such control over operations and uadedying security of the
project/ assets, these loans ace considered adequately secured for repayments. In view of the above, the Company believes that no provision is
required to be made using the expected credit loss method.

iii Liquidity Risk

Liquidity dsk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable losses.

The Company's objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company relies on a
mix of borrowings, capital infusion and excess operating cash flows to meet its needs for funds. The current committed lines of credit are sufficient to
meet its short to rnedivm term expansion needs. The Company menitors rolling forecasts of its Bquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash
to meet operational needs while maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that the Company
does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.

The Company’s overall risk management programmed focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The treasury team identifies, evaluates
and hedpes financial risks in close co-operation. with the Company’s operating units. The Board lays down principles for overall risk management; as
well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and credit risk and investment of excess liquidity.

The following table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial linbilities with agreed repayment peciods. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial lizbilities based on the eadiest date oh which the company can be required

to pay.

As at 31st March 2022 (% in Lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1to 5 years More than 5 years Total Carcying
- Amount*®
Borrowings 17,454.04 18,227.84 - 35,681.88 35,681.88
Stautory Dues 142.77 - - 142.77 142,77
Trade payable 2,368.11 - - 2,368.11 2,368.11
Interest accrud but not due 160.53 - - 160.53 160.53
Book overdraft 109.74 - - 109.74 109.74
Employee dues payable 95.21 - - 95.21 95.21
Other payable 442,93 = . 442,93 | 442,93
Ag at 31st March 2021 i . (X in Lakhs)
Particulars® Less than 1ycar 1to 5 years Mote than 5 years Total Carrying
Amount*
Borrowings 9,243.22 24,654.87 - 33,898.09 33,898.09
Stautory Dues 113.95 - - 113.95 113.95
Trade payable 2,858.10 - - 2,858.10 2,858.10
Interest accrud but.not due 83.68 - - 83.68 83.68
Book overdraft 15.51 - - 15.51 15.51
Employee dues payable 58.41 - - 58.41 58.41
Other payable 96.08 - - 96.08 96.08

» Difference in total outstanding liability and carrying amount is on account reduction of un-amortized borrowing costs from loan balance in view of

recognition of Interest Cost on "Effective Interest Rate Method" basis as provided in Ind AS.
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The Compariy manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in Jight of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financinl
covenants, The primary objective of the Compnny’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. The Company's primary objective when
managing capital is to ensue that it maintaing an efficient capital steuctuce and healthy capital satios and safeguasd the Company’s ability to continue as n
going concern in order to support its business and provide maximum tetumns for shareholders. The Compuny also proposes to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. No changes were made ln the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31st March, 2022 and
31st March, 2021.

In order to achieve this ovemll objective, the Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to engure that it meers fuancial covenants
attuched to the interest bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financinl covenants would permit
the baok to immedintely call loans and borrowings. There have been no brenches of the financial covenants of any interest bearing loans and borrowing
for reported periods.

For the purpose of the Company's capital managemeat, capital includes {ssued Equity share capital and all other equity reserves. Net debt includes,
interest bearing loans and borrowings, teade and other payables less cash aad shost term deposits,

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments that are recognized in the financial
statements,

Financial Aestesig'nated at amortized cost

Investment 618.83 - - -
Loans 43,434.10 - 40,024.92 -
Security deposit 450.00 - 450.00 -
Trade receiyable 2,970.29 - 4,355.26 -
Cash and bank balances 5,116.58 - 8,170.40 -
Bank deposit with original maturity of more than 12 221.04 - 19.97 -
months
Other financial assets 17.15 - 13.18 -
52,827.99 - 53,033.73 -

Financial Habilities at amortized cost

Borrowings 35,681.88 - 33,898.09 -
Statutory Remittances 142.77 - 113.95 -
Trade payable 2,368.11 - 2,858.10 -
Interest accrud but not due 160.53 83.68

Book overdraft 109.74 - 15.51 -
|Bmployee dues payable 95.21 - 5841 -
Othet payable 442,93 - 96.08 -

39,001.17 “ 37,123.82 -
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Fair value hierarchy

The fair value of financial instcuments a5 disclosed above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation
technique. The hiemechy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or linbilities (Level 1 measurements) and lowest
priority to unobsecvable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The categories used are as under:

Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market;

Level 2 : Ditectly or indirectly observable macker inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

Level 3 : Inputs which ate not based on observable macket data.

Note 1: Carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities other than disclosed above approximate the fair value.

Nate 2: Faic value of loans and borrowings approximates the carrying values considering the discount cate which is based on the market mte. The
discount mte is equivalent to the Effective Interest Rate of such loans and borrowings. Theze is no significont change in the market rate for disconnting
of such loans and borrowings.

Tinancial Ratios

The following are analytical ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and Macch 31, 2021

Particulars 2022 I 2021 Change Reasons for Variance

(a) | Current Ratio 1.11 1.31 -16%

(b)| Debt-Equity Ratio 5.94 6.05 2% _

(c) | Debt Service Coverage Ratio 0.79 0.20 304%|Increased mainly on account of increase in
earnings available for debt service.

(d)|Remn on Equity Ratio . 1.12% 15.81% -55%|Reduction in profit in FY 2021-22

(€) | Inventory turnover ratio . 0.82 0.71 15%

(B | Trade Receivables turnover 4.04 4.77 -15%

ratio

(&) | Trade payables turnover ratio 4.83 1.48 226%|Inceeased mainly on account of increase in
COGS 1ecognised for certain projects on
completion of pecformance obligation.

(b)|Net capital turnover ratio 1.87 410 -54%|Increased mainly on account of reduction in
working capital.

(i) [Net profit ratio 2.27% 5.16% -56%| Reduction in profitin FY 2021-22

() |Return on Capital employed 10.44% 6.26% 67%|Increased mainly on account of increase in
adjusted EBIT due to increase in interest|
income from intec-corporate deposit.

(k)| Return on investment Not applicable . Not applicable -

* Fosrmulae for computation of ratios are as follows:

Particulars Numerator Denominator
1) | Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities
{b)| Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Total Equity
(c) | Debt Secvice Coverge Ratio Eamings available for debt service Debt Service
(d)] Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the year Avemge Total Bquity
¢) | Inventory turnover ratio Revenue from Operations Averape Inventory
(f) | Trade Receivables turnover ratio Revenue from Operations Avemge Trade Receivable
()| Teade payables turnover ratio Purchases and Other Services. Average Trade Payubles
h_.l) Net capital tumover ratio : Revenue from Operations ‘Working Capital
(i) |Net profit ratio Profit for the year Revenue from Operations
(i) [Return on Capital employed BEarnings before intecest and tax Capital Employed
(k)| Return on investment Eanings from invested funds Average invested funds in Treasucy

Investments
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. Relationship with Struck off Companies

The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

. The Company do not have any Benami property, whete any proceeding has been initinted or pending against the Company for holding any Benami

property.

iv. The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be zegistered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
. The Cormpany have not traded or invested in Crypto currency ot Virtual Currency during the financial year.

. The Company is not classified ns wilful defaulter.

=

. The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to ady other person(s) or entity(ies), including forcign entities (Intermediaries) with the

understanding that the Intermediney shall:

(®) dixcctly or indirectly lend or lavest in other persons or eatities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) ot

(1) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaies.

The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in witing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) dicectly or indisectly lend or invest in other pesons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guasantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaies.

. The Company doesn’t have any tiansaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed ns income during the

yeat in the tax asscssments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 such as search or survey.
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